
Committee Agenda   
 

1 

 
 
Area Plans Subcommittee B 
Wednesday, 20th September, 2006 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Gary Woodhall, Democratic Services Officer 
tel: 01992 564470 email:gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 
 
Members: 
 
Councillors M Colling (Chairman), Mrs S Perry (Vice-Chairman), A Green, R Frankel, 
Mrs A Grigg, S Metcalfe, Mrs P K Rush, D Stallan, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 

 



Area Plans Subcommittee B  Wednesday, 20 September 2006 
 

2 

 1. WEBCASTING  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. The Council has adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings which is attached.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 9 - 10) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. MINUTES  (Pages 11 - 18) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee. 

 
 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 
  (Head of Research and Democratic Services) To declare interests in any item on this 

agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 19 - 46) 
 

  (Head of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications as 
set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 



Area Plans Subcommittee B  Wednesday, 20 September 2006 
 

3 

consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Head of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 



Area Plans Subcommittee B  Wednesday, 20 September 2006 
 

4 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



 
 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROTOCOL FOR WEBCASTING OF 
COUNCIL AND OTHER MEETINGS 

Agenda Item 1

Page 5



Introduction 
 
The Council has agreed that certain meetings should be the subject of live web 
transmission (‘web casting’), or recorded for subsequent transmission. Fixed cameras are 
located within the Council Chamber for this purpose and there is a mobile unit for use in 
other locations  
 
This protocol has been produced to assist the conduct of web cast meetings and to 
ensure that in doing so the Council is compliant with its obligations under the Data 
Protection Act 1998 and the Human Rights Act 1998.  Accordingly the following will apply 
to all meetings to be web cast by the Council:- 
 
Main provisions: 
 
1. The Chairman of the meeting has the discretion to request the termination or 
suspension of the webcast if in the opinion of the Chairman continuing to webcast 
would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting.  
 
This would include: 
 
(i) Public disturbance or other suspension of the meeting; 
(ii) Exclusion of public and press being moved and supported; 
(iii) Any other reason moved and seconded and supported by the 

Council/Committee or Subcommittee. 
 
2. No exempt or confidential agenda items shall be webcast. 
 
3.  Subject to paragraph 4 below all archived webcasts will be available to view 
on the Council’s website for a period of six months. Council meetings are recorded 
onto DVD, which will be stored in accordance with records management procedures. 
 
4.  Archived webcasts or parts of webcasts shall only be removed from the 
Council’s website if the Monitoring Officer considers that it is necessary because all 
or part of the content of the webcast is or is likely to be in breach of any statutory 
provision or common law doctrine, for example Data Protection and Human Rights 
legislation or provisions relating to confidential or exempt information. 
 
If the Monitoring Officer has decided to take such action she must notify all elected 
Members in writing as soon as possible of her decision and the reasons for it via the 
Bulletin 
 
Council expects the Chair of the Council and the Monitoring Officer to ensure that 
Council meetings are conducted lawfully. Therefore, Council anticipates that the 
need to exercise the power set out above will occur only on an exceptional basis. 
 
5.  Any elected Member who is concerned about any webcast should raise their 
concerns with the Head of Research and Democratic Services 
 

Page 6



Agenda Front Sheets and Signage at Meetings  
 
On the front of each agenda and on signs to be displayed inside and outside the 
meeting room there will be the following notice:- 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 

 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via 
the Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will 
confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in 
accordance with the Council’s published policy. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, 
you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of 
the public do not wish to have their image captured they should sit in the 
upper council chamber public gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 
 
Meetings of the Area Plans Subcommittees, District Development Control 
Committee, Licensing Committee and other ‘Quasi Judicial’ Hearings 
  
In any correspondence notifying applicants, supporters or objectors of the meeting 
date on which an application will be heard, the following advice will be included if the 
particular meeting has been chosen to be web cast:-  
 
"Please note that Council meetings may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast 
via the Authority's Internet site. If you do not wish the hearing of your application to 
be filmed, please contact the Senior Democratic Services Officer to discuss their 
concerns. The Council will not film speakers if they do not wish to appear in the 
webcast“  
 
Conduct of Meetings  
 
At the start of each meeting to be filmed, an announcement will be made to the effect 
that the meeting is being or may be web cast, and that the Chairman may also 
terminate or suspend the web casting of the meeting, in accordance with this 
protocol.  This will be confirmed by the Chairman making the following statement:- 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording 
cameras will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image 
will become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery.” 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the planning meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee. A map 
showing the venue will be attached to the agenda. 
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes and if you are not present by the time your item is considered, the 
Subcommittee will determine the application in your absence.  
 

IMPORTANT 
 
You should also be aware that the meeting may be webcast live and available for 
subsequent viewing. You must limit your speech to planning based arguments and avoid 
anything that could be considered defamatory. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers 
presentations. The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either 
the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should 
the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they 
are required to give their reasons for doing so.The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, 
which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand 
referred to the next meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Agenda Item 2

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Area Plans Subcommittee B Date: 23 August 2006  
   

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping 

Time: 7.30  - 8.00 pm 

Members
Present:

Mrs S Perry (Vice-Chairman), A Green, Mrs A Grigg, Mrs P K Rush, 
Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse 

Other
Councillors:

Apologies: M Colling, R Frankel, S Metcalfe, D Stallan and C Whitbread 

Officers
Present:

S Solon (Principal Planning Officer) and G J Woodhall (Democratic Services 
Officer)

20. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 

21. MINUTES  

 RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2006 be taken as read and 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

22. VICE-CHAIRMAN  

As the Chairman had tendered his apologies for absence, the Vice-Chairman had 
assumed the Chairmanship for the duration of the meeting and, as such, sought a 
nomination for a member of the Sub-Committee to act as Vice-Chairman for the 
duration of the meeting. 

RESOLVED: 

That Councillor Mrs A Grigg be appointed Vice-Chairman for the duration of 
the meeting. 

23. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs S Perry 
and J M Whitehouse declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, 
by virtue of being a member of Epping Town Council. The Councillors had 

Agenda Item 3

Page 11



Area Plans Subcommittee B  23 August 2006 

2

determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for 
the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1248/06 – 12 Theydon Place, Epping. 

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs A Grigg 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being a 
member of North Weald Parish Council. The Councillor had determined that her 
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1158/06 – North Weald Airfield, Merlin Way, North Weald. 

24. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

25. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 4 be determined as set out in 
the attached schedule to these minutes. 

26. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 

CHAIRMAN

Page 12



Report Item No: 1 

APPLICATION No: EPF/1203/06

SITE ADDRESS: Land at Maltings Drive 
Epping

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: D Hunt 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of car port and garden shed. 

DECISION: APPLICATION WITHDRAWN BY APPLICANT 

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

3 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans 
received on 09/08/2006 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.

Minute Item 25

Page 3Page 13



Report  Item No: 2 

APPLICATION No: EPF/1248/06

SITE ADDRESS: 12 Theydon Place 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 4NH 

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: Mr & Mr Sayers 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of a two storey side extension, (with a single storey 
rear projection) and a first floor front extension. 

DECISION: GRANT (WITH CONDITIONS) 

CONDITIONS:

1 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 

The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 

2 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 

Page 4Page 14



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1030/06

SITE ADDRESS: Former Parade Ground
Merlin Way 
North Weald
Epping
Essex 

PARISH: North Weald 

APPLICANT: Crest Nicholson (Eastern) Ltd 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Reserved matters application for the erection of 141 no. one, 
two, three and four bedroom apartments and houses together 
with associated roads, parking, ancillary buildings and 
landscaped area. 

DECISION: DEFERRED TO DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

CONDITIONS:

1 The fencing, or other protection which is part of the approved Statement shall not be 
moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works, including external works 
have been completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials removed 
from the site. 

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall indicate the specification and timetable of 
any tree works, which shall be in accordance with the British Standard 
Recommendations for Tree Works (BS.3998: 1989). 

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include a scheme for the inspection and 
supervision of the tree protection measures. The scheme shall be appropriate to the 
scale and duration of the works and may include details of personnel induction and 
awareness of arboricultural matters; identification of individual responsibilities and 
key personnel; a statement of delegated powers; frequency, dates and times of 
inspections and reporting, and procedures for dealing with variations and incidents. 
The scheme of inspection and supervision shall be administered by a suitable 
person, approved by the local planning authority but instructed by the applicant.   

2 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans 
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or 
removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  All tree works approved shall 
be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work 
(B.S.3998: 1989).

If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely 
damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another 
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or 
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at 

Page 5Page 15



such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective 
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation.

3 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) have 
been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and these 
works shall be carried out as approved.  These details shall include, as appropriate, 
and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels 
or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle artefacts and 
structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below 
ground.  Details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or 
establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants, 
including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers / densities where appropriate.  
If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any 
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another 
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall 
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 

4 No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a 
minimum period of five years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The schedule shall include details of the arrangements for 
its implementation.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved schedule. 

5 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans 
received on 10/08/2006 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.

6 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of development.  The assessment shall include 
calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention using 
Windes or other similar programme.  The approved measures shall be undertaken 
prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved and shall e adequately 
maintained.

7 No unbound material shall be used in the surface finish of the driveway within 6m of 
the highway boundary of the site. 

8 The carriageways of the proposed estate roads shall be constructed up to and 
including at least road base level, prior to the commencement of the erection of any 
dwelling intended to take access.  The carriageways and footpaths shall be 
constructed up to and including base course surfacing to ensure that each dwelling 
prior to occupation has a properly consolidated and surfaced carriageway and 
footway, between the dwelling and the existing highway.  Until final surfacing is 
completed, the footway base course shall be provided in a manner to avoid any 
upstands to gullies, covers, kerbs, or other such obstructions within or bordering the 
footway.  The carriageways, footways and footpaths in front of each dwelling shall 
be completed with final surfacing within twelve months or three months in the case 

Page 6Page 16



of a shared surface road from the occupation of such dwelling. 

9 The Proposed bellmouth junction with the existing highway, inclusive of cleared land 
necessary to provide the sight splays, shall be constructed and be available for use 
prior to the commencement of any other development including the delivery of 
materials. 

10 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1 Class A, B, C and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission 
of the Local Planning Authority. 

11 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the report of the acoustic 
consultants received on 22/08/2002. 

12 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries 
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

13 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 

14 No bonfires shall be permitted on site throughout the demolition and construction 
phase of the development. 

15 All reasonable steps to minimise dust emissions from the site shall be employed 
throughout the demolition and construction phase of the development. 

Page 7Page 17



Report Item No: 4 

APPLICATION No: EPF/1158/06

SITE ADDRESS: North Weald Airfield 
Merlin Way 
North Weald
Essex 

PARISH: North Weald 

APPLICANT: EFDC

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retention of hard surface to car parking area 

DECISION: GRANT (WITH CONDITIONS) 

CONDITIONS:

1 The parking area shall only be used for purposes in connection with the use of land 
at North Weald Airfield for recreational purposes and as a showground, an airfield or 
for holding markets. 

Page 8Page 18



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘B’ 

20 SEPTEMBER 2006 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE

1. EPF/1069/06 The Old Rectory, Coopersale 

Common, Epping 

REFUSE 21 

2. EPF/1070/06 The Old Rectory, Coopersale 

Common, Epping 

GRANT 26 

3. EPF/1086/06 The Old Rectory, Coopersale 

Common, Epping 

REFUSE 28 

4. EPF/1256/06 175 High Street, Epping GRANT 32 

5. EPF/1467/06 17 Lynceley Grange GRANT 35 

6. EPF/1430/06 North Weald Airfield, Merlin Way, 

North Weald 

GRANT 41 

7. EPF/1367/06 7 Forest Drive, Theydon Bois GRANT 43 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1069/06

SITE ADDRESS: The Old Rectory
Coopersale Common
Epping
Essex
CM16 7QT

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Balasuriya

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey rear extension.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: REFUSE

REASON:

1 The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The proposed development is
at odds with Government advice, the policies of the adopted Local Plan and
Approved Essex Structure Plan, in that it does not constitute a reasonable extension
to an existing dwelling. Thus this application is unacceptable, because the proposed
extension by reason of its size, design and siting would harm the objectives of the
Metropolitan Green Belt and is contrary to Policies GB2A and GB14A of the adopted
Local Plan

Description of Proposal:

Erection of a single storey rear extension.

Description of Site:

A large detached grade II listed former rectory, dating from the 19th century, on the southern edge
of Coopersale Village. The site commands panoramic views to the south. The whole site is within
the Green Belt.

Relevant History:

Various applications for access and garden walls, alterations to outbuildings
EPF/2062/01 Alterations and extensions withdrawn
EPF/2071/04 Detached garage and store App/Con
LB/EPF/2072/04 Listed Building application as above App/Con
EPF/116/05 Attached pool building refused and appeal
dismissed

Page 21



LB/EPF/117/05 Listed Building Application as above refused and appeal
dismissed
EPF/0482/05 Erection of 2.0m close boarded fence refused and appeal
dismissed
EPF/1351/05 Single Storey pool room extension refused and appeal
dismissed
LB/EPF/1352/05 Listed Building application as above App/Con
EPF/1390/05 Extension to garage for store App/Con

Polices Applied:

Structure Plan

C2 - Green Belt
HC3 - Protection of listed buildings

Local Plan

HC10 - Listed Buildings
GB2A - Green Belt
GB14A – Residential Extensions in the Green Belt
DBE 9 & 10 - Amenity

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues are the impact of this proposal on the Green Belt, Listed Building, and the
amenities of neighbouring properties.

Green Belt

The current rectory is a large building, which has had various attached outbuildings to the north
converted to residential use over the years. The proposal would see the erection of a single storey
link with a pitched roof, measuring 6m x 3.6m by 4.7m. This would link the back of the former
garage with a proposed games room measuring 8.6m x 6.4m x 5.6m high. The total length of the
projection from the former garage to the west is 11.2m. Another glazed link would be constructed
to the main part of the house. A patio/garden would be formed in the angle between the house
and the extension.

This is a large dwelling on a substantial site. Previous works appear to be limited to a
conservatory, which has been erected on the western elevation and a detached garage/store
erected on the northern side boundary of the site.

The relevant Local Plan policy is GB14A, which states that limited extensions to existing dwellings
may be permitted where:-

(i) The open character and appearance of the green belt will not be impaired; and
(ii) The character and appearance of the buildings in their settings will be enhanced or not

unduly harmed; and
(iii) They will not result in disproportionate additions of more than 40%, up to a maximum of

50sqm over and above the floorspace of the original building.

The scheme has been amended since the previous applications that were all dismissed on appeal
by reducing the overall size and bulk of the extension.

In the appeal decision, the Inspector commented that although the extension would not be
disproportionate to the size of the existing substantial dwelling, the extension would still project

Page 22



unacceptably into the openness of the Green Belt, partly because it spread beyond the residential
curtilage, but also because it spread the complex of buildings into open Green Belt land.

Although reduced in size, the extension still spreads the complex of buildings and thus will not be
seen only against the backdrop of the existing. It is considered that the proposals fail to meet
criteria (i) of the policy.

Furthermore, since the appeal decisions criteria (iii) has been introduced. The proposed extension
would result in an addition with a floorspace of approximately 74sqm. When combined with the
existing conservatory, the total additions result in around 91sqm above the original dwelling. This
would be contrary to Policy GB14A (iii).

However it is important to add here that negotiations regarding this scheme had been ongoing
prior to the adoption of this amended policy. Given this transitional period, members may feel then
that it would be harsh to judge the scheme against that criteria, and in view of the reduction that
has been incorporated, planning permission could be granted despite the change of policy during
the course of considering extensions to this property.

The scheme will not be visible from the east (Coopersale Common), but will be visible from the
west, south and north. When viewed from the open fields and footpaths to the south and west the
extension will not be unduly prominent against the backdrop of the existing building on the site, but
does result in a further spread of the complex of buildings within the Green Belt which invariably
detracts from its openness.

Listed Building & Design

The proposal would see the erection of pitched roof extensions with various gable ends. The
Council’s Conservation Officer has commented that the scheme is acceptable given that Listed
Building Consent has been granted for the previous, larger scheme.

Amenities

The neighbouring properties that could be affected are nos 24–30 Vicarage Road. It is the case
that the view over the site to the south will be affected by this proposal, but it should be noted that
there is no ‘right to a view’. Due to the slight slope to the south at this location, a reduction in
ground levels on the site, and the design of the building it is considered that there will be little harm
to the amenities of the neighbours in visual terms. The proposal will be some 15m from the
northern boundary of the site, and the gardens of the neighbours are around another 17m long to
their rear elevations. Therefore there would be no adverse impact in term of overshadowing of
these gardens.

There is only one window proposed in the roof of the north elevation of proposal but is not so close
to the rear boundary to cause any undue loss of amenity. Due to the design of the extension, and
its distance from the rear elevations of neighbouring properties, it is unlikely that there would be
any appreciable disturbance caused by the domestic enjoyment of the site from the proposed patio
area to the south of the extension.

Conclusion

This is a finely balanced case. The applicant has reduced the size of the proposed extension three
times. The Inspector at appeal was satisfied that the extension was not disproportionate to the
existing dwelling. However, under the new Policy GB14A, any extension that results in the original
building being extended by 50sqm or greater detracts from the openness and should be resisted. If
this were allowed the combined floorspace of both the existing conservatory and the extension
would be approximately 91sqm. The proposal is therefore recommended for refusal. However,

Page 23



members may feel that planning permission could be granted in this particular case despite the
change of policy during the course of considering this application.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

TOWN COUNCIL – Committee object to this proposal which would result in development on green
belt for which there appears to be no special justification at all.

16 VICARAGE ROAD – Object, is out of proportion and character with the listed building, is too
high, loss of amenity for me and neighbours, would dominate outlook, and will extend the curtilage
unreasonably.

18 VICARAGE ROAD – Object this will compromise the openness of the area, will reduce the
outlook, is at odds with Green Belt polices, it is not single storey due to its height, contrary to C2,
GB2 GB14, DBE10, HC10 and HC3.

20 VICARAGE ROAD – Object, will be out of character with the listed building, inappropriate in a
Green Belt area, will be bulky and overbearing, proximity to adjacent properties would be
detrimental to occupiers, not a reasonable extension, not reasonable or necessary.

24 VICARAGE ROAD – Object, loss of light to the rear of our property, the building will be
overbearing and out of scale with the properties in Vicarage Road, will remove the reasonably
open aspect to the rear of our home.

Page 24



109.7m

110.0m

108.8m

107.3m

106.4m

101.5m

C
RW

ard
B
dy

1.22m RH

D
e

f R
H

*

*

*

*

*

*

8

1

8

1
3
8

1
3
9

6
8

9

1 4 0

1 47

1

14

1

8
2

8
6

School

3

9
4

6

House

W hiffins O r c ha rd

1
3

1

7
2

The Old Rectory

31

Gatehouse

33

1
0

2

The
Southview

Church

Ansons

Hall

Farm

St Alban's

Lych Gate

2
9

2
4

2
3

23

24

2

2

1
4

1

1
3

1

2a

2
5

1
0

2
0

1
3

12

3
9

2 1 3

Houblons House

Posts

108.35m

BM

7.75

B R IC
K FIEL D

RO A D

V IC A R A G E R O A D

L
A

B
U

R
N

U
M

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

S
T

A
L

B
A

N
S

C
O

O
P

E
R

S
A

L
E

C
O

M
M

O
N

O
A

K
G

L
A

D
E

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map

with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

Copyright and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Item
Number:

1 and 2

Application Number: EPF/1070/06

Site Name: The Old Rectory, Coopersale

Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 25



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/1070/06

SITE ADDRESS: The Old Rectory
Coopersale Common
Epping
Essex
CM16 7QT

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Balasuriya

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Grade II listed building application for a single storey rear
extension.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT

CONDITIONS:

1 The works hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three
years, beginning with the date on which the consent was granted.

2 Samples of the types and details of colours of all the external finishes, shall be
submitted for approval by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement
of the development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with
such approved detail.

3 Additional drawings that show details of proposed new windows, doors, rooflights,
eaves, verges, fascias, cills, structural openings and junctions with the existing
building, by section and elevation at scales between 1:20 and 1:1 as appropriate,
shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA in writing prior to the commencement
of any works.

4 Details and colours of all external pipes, extracts, grilles, flues, lights and any alarm
boxes or satellite dishes to be fixed to the fabric of the building shall be submitted to
and approved by the LPA prior to starting work any work on site.

5 All new rainwater goods and soil and vent pipes shall be of black painted cast iron.

6 A sample plinth brickwork panel minimum 600 x 600mm shall be provided for
agreement by the local planning authority reusing historic bricks and with a flush
lime mortar joint. All further rebuilding of the plinth shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved panel.

7 No vents, grilles or ducting shall be fixed to the fabric of the building without the prior
written approval of the local planning authority.

Page 26



Description of Proposal:

Listed building application for the erection of a single storey rear extension

Relevant History:

Various applications for access and garden walls, alterations to outbuildings
LB/EPF/1194/01 – Conservatory - Approved
LB/EPF/2072/04 - Detached garage and store - Approved
LB/EPF/117/05 - Attached pool building - Approved
LB/EPF/1352/05 - Single storey rear extension - Approved

Polices Applied:

HC10 - Listed Buildings

Issues and Considerations:

The only issue is the impact of this proposal on the Listed Building.

The Council’s Conservation Officer has commented that the scheme is acceptable given that
Listed Building Consent was granted for the previous larger scheme.

Members may recall that the previous proposal was granted permission at Area Plans Sub B
committee on the 12th October 2005. As this extension is smaller and of same design it would
have even less impact on the character of the listed dwelling than the previously approved
scheme.

The proposal is considered to comply with Policy HC10 and is duly recommended for approval.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

TOWN COUNCIL – Committee object to this proposal which would result in development on green
belt for which there appears to be no special justification at all.
16 VICARAGE ROAD – Object, is out of proportion and character with the listed building, is too
high, loss of amenity for me and neighbours, would dominate outlook, and will extend the curtilage
unreasonably.
18 VICARAGE ROAD – Object this will compromise the openness of the area, will reduce the
outlook, is at odds with Green Belt polices, it is not single storey due to its height, contrary to C2,
GB2 GB14, DBE10, HC10 and HC3.
20 VICARAGE ROAD – Object, will be out of character with the listed building, inappropriate in a
Green Belt area, will be bulky and overbearing, proximity to adjacent properties would be
detrimental to occupiers, not a reasonable extension, not reasonable or necessary.
24 VICARAGE ROAD – Object, loss of light to the rear of our property, the building will be
overbearing and out of scale with the properties in Vicarage Road, will remove the reasonably
open aspect to the rear of our home.

Page 27



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1086/06

SITE ADDRESS: The Old Rectory
Coopersale Common
Epping
Essex
CM16 7QT

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Balasuriya

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Extension to curtilage of residential garden.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: REFUSE

REASON:

1 The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The proposed development
represents inappropriate development and is therefore at odds with Government
advice, as expressed in PPG2, the policies of the adopted Local Plan and the
Approved Essex Structure Plan in that it does not constitute a reasonable extension
to an existing curtilage. Thus this application is unacceptable because the change of
use, by reason of its size and use as domestic curtilage would significantly encroach
into previously undeveloped Green Belt land, materially harming the open character
of the landscape. This would be contrary to Policy C2 of the Essex and Southend on
Sea Replacement Structure Plan and Policies GB2A and GB4 of the adopted Local
Plan and Local Plan Alterations.

Description of Proposal:

Retrospective consent is being sought for the extension of the residential curtilage. This consists
of two areas, one to the west of the property, approximately 23.5m deep by 80m wide (although
becomes thinner south of the dwelling) and a smaller triangular area at the south end of the plot.

Description of Site:

A large detached grade II listed former rectory, dating from the 19th century, on the southern edge
of Coopersale Village. The site commands panoramic views to the south. The whole site is within
the Green Belt.

Relevant History:

Various applications for access and garden walls, alterations to outbuildings
EPF/2062/01 Alterations and extensions withdrawn
EPF/2071/04 Detached garage and store App/Con
LB/EPF/2072/04 Listed Building application as above App/Con

Page 28



EPF/116/05 Attached pool building refused and appeal
dismissed
LB/EPF/117/05 Listed Building Application as above refused and appeal
dismissed
EPF/0482/05 Erection of 2.0m close boarded fence refused and appeal
dismissed
EPF/1351/05 Single Storey pool room extension refused and appeal
dismissed
LB/EPF/1352/05 Listed Building application as above App/Con
EPF/1390/05 Extension to garage for store App/Con

Polices Applied:

Structure Plan Policies

C2 – Development within the Green Belt
HC3 Protection of listed buildings
Local Plan Policies
GB2A – Development within the Green Belt
GB4 – Extensions to residential curtilages
HC10 Listed Buildings
LL2 - Development in the countryside

Issues and Considerations:

Main issue is whether this is considered appropriate development in the Green Belt and its impact
on it.

Within the Green Belt there is strict control of development. The proposal does not fall into the
limited categories of development referred to in Structure Plan policy C2, which may be permitted,
where the openness of the Green Belt would be preserved and where there is no conflict with the
objectives of including the land within the Green Belt. However, Local Plan policy GB2A does
allow planning permission to be granted where development is in accordance with another Green
Belt policy.

Local Plan policy GB4 provides criteria for extensions to curtilages within the Green Belt. These
criteria require that the extension of curtilage would not have an adverse effect on the open
character of the landscape; relates well to the curtilages of any adjoining residential properties and
would not be excessive in size.

It is considered that by extending the domestic character of the garden area of The Old Rectory
into the proposed site, the development would be harmful to the visual amenity of the Green Belt
through the potential introduction of formal planting, fencing, children’s play equipment, washing
lines and other structures that could materially effect the openness of this part of the Green Belt.

Whilst it is appreciated that existing residential curtilage projects only 6m to the west of the
dwelling, there is a large section of garden to the south of the property, over 1500sqm in size.

The applicant argues that given the substantial size of the property the rear garden is
inappropriate and that the extended curtilage would provide a reasonable and not excessive
curtilage providing a better sized garden more in keeping with the size and status of the listed
building.

Page 29



The previous applications also proposed an extension to the residential curtilage of similar size.
This formed one of the reasons for refusal under EPF/116/05 and was commented upon by the
Appeal Inspector who argued that,

“To my mind, extending the curtilage in the manner proposed would, in itself, materially harm the
open character of the landscape and conflict with the requirements of LP Policy GB4”.

EPF/1351/05 considered a 2m increase in the depth of the curtilage. Again this was commented
on the Inspector at appeal, who argued here that,

“The addition to the curtilage would clearly be more modest than in the Appeal A/B [EPF/116/05
and LB/EPF/117/05] proposal, but would still represent a significant encroachment into previously
undeveloped land”.

There are no special circumstances here to justify an extension of the curtilage that would
outweigh the harm to the openness of the Green Belt that would result.

It is considered therefore that the proposal is at odds with Policy C2 of the Structure plan and
Policies GB2A and GB4 of the Local Plan.

There would be no adverse impact on the character or setting of the listed building.

Conclusion

Based on the above, the proposal is recommended for refusal.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

EPPING TOWN COUNCIL – Object to this proposal, which would result in development on green
belt for which there, appears no special justification at all.

20, VICARAGE ROAD – Object on the grounds that it would be harmful to green belt and effect on
the lives of the neighbours.

14 VICARAGE ROAD – Object as the extension is opposed to Council’s policy of preserving green
belt and safeguarding listed buildings; could leave gate open for more development.

16 VICARAGE ROAD – Object, further invasion of the green belt.

18 VICARAGE ROAD – Object, reduce openness of the area; objections raised by planning
department previously are still valid.

Page 30



109.7m

110.0m

108.8m

107.3m

106.4m

101.5m

1.22m RH

D
e

f R
H

*

*

*

*

*

*

11

21

17

25

Coopersale and

2
4

Theydon Garnon

8

6

6a

C of E Primary School

15

1

9

1
2 1

6

13 15

8

1
3

8

1
3

9

6
6

a
6

6

6
8

9

1 4 0

147

1

14

1

8
2

8
6

School

3

9
4

6

House

W h iff in s O r ch a r d

1
3

1

7
2

The Old Rectory

3
1

Gatehouse

33

1
0

2

The
Southview

Church

Ansons

Hall

Farm

St Alban's

Lych Gate

2
9

2
4

2
3

23

24

2

2

1
4

1

1
3

1

2a

2
5

1
0

2
0

1
3

12

3
9

2 1 3

Houblons House

Posts

Post

B
M

108.35m

BM

B R IC KF IE
LD

R O AD

V IC A R A GE
R OA D

TE
ROAD

L
A

B
U

R
N

U
M

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

S
T

A
L

B
A

N
S

C
O

O
P

E
R

S
A

L
E

C
O

M
M

O
N

O
A

K
G

L
A

D
E

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map

with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

Copyright and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Item
Number:

3

Application Number: EPF/1086/06

Site Name: The Old Rectory, Coopersale

Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 31



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/1256/06

SITE ADDRESS: 175 High Street
Epping
Essex
CM16 4BL

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: Mr R Bell

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from hairdressing salon to mixed use as coffee
shop/wine bar/ hairdressing salon.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT

CONDITION:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

Description of Proposal:

This application is for the change of use of the existing hairdressers to a mixed use of hairdressing
salon/coffee shop/wine bar. The existing use is A1 retail and the proposed use is mixed A1/A3
and A4 use. The applicant’s intention is that the hairdressing business will continue to operate but
that there will be greater scope to serve drinks etc and diversify the business.

Description of Site:

Number 175 is a ground floor shop unit within a three storey building on the western side of
Epping High Street. The unit is currently in use as a hairdressing salon. The upper floors have
office use.

Relevant History:

None relevant.

Policies Applied:

Local Plan Policies
TC3 relating to maintaining the vitality and viability of the town Centre
RP5A relating to environmental impacts.
CP6 Sustainable development.

Page 32



Issues and Considerations:

The shop unit is within the identified Epping Town Centre but is outside the Key Frontage in which
loss of retail use is strictly controlled. The main concern therefore is whether the proposed mixed
use is appropriate to the Town Centre.

Policy TC3 of the adopted Local Plan allows for Town Centre uses that make the centres attractive
and useful places to shop, work and visit throughout the day and evening. The mixed use now
proposed fulfills this definition. The mixed use will encourage the use of the premises by a wider
range of customers and for potentially more hours extending what is currently mainly a daytime
use into the evenings as well. As such it is considered that the proposal will help add to the vitality
and viability of the town centre.

Being in the Town Centre and with offices rather than residential use above, it is not considered
that the mixed use proposed will cause problems of noise and disturbance.

The site is within the Epping Conservation Area but no external alterations to the building are
proposed and it is not considered that the change of use will be harmful to the character of the
conservation area.

The proposal does not result in the loss of a retail unit, it merely allows the existing use to diversify
and adapt to meet changing requirements. The site is in any case outside the key frontage area in
which retail frontage is strongly protected. Concern has been raised by an existing local business
that the proposal will impact on their trade, this is matter of competition which is of little weight in
the consideration of the application.

The proposal is in accordance with the adopted policies of the Local Plan and the application is
recommended accordingly.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

TOWN COUNCIL – The Committee objected to this application and deplored the loss of further
retail capacity within the High Street.

169 HIGH STREET - Object. This will affect my business. It seems permission has already been
granted before this goes to committee as the changes to the building are already underway.
People seem to be allowed to do what they want and the Council have no powers to stop them.
It’s about time the Council started looking after the town.

Page 33



�

�

�

�

�
E

P
P

IN
G

E
D

(a)

C
R

W
a

rd
B

dy

E
P

P
IN

G
H

E
M

N
A

L
L

W
A

R
D

ESS

B
1

39
3

H
IG

H
S

T
R

E
E

T

STATION

RO
ADB

13
93

B
1

39
3

Twankhams
Alley

107.6m

105.5m

104.5m

B
M

10
6
.9

5
m

rd

105.5m

10
6
.7

m

T
C

B
s

El

Sub Sta

W
or

ks

B
ri
e
la

n
d

M
arket Lodge

Taba

The
W

alnu ts

The

Stum
pH

ouse

1
to

4

3
0

12
1

12
3

135

11
7

C
hurch

16

12

10
b

1
76

172

23
1

2
04

221
223

22
5

229
to

23
5

217 19
8

196

18
6

219

1
83

173

17
9

1
91

19
5

Bank

18
9

18
5

18
7

164

St John
The

Baptist
Church

170
174

140

120

Hall

L ibrary

2
a

2

11

19

17

15
11

a

5

El Sub
Sta

1
6

entre

21

pping

12
5

12
7

**

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map

with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

Copyright and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Item
Number:

4

Application Number: EPF/1256/06

Site Name: 175 High Street, Epping

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 34



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/1467/06

SITE ADDRESS: 17 Lynceley Grange
Epping
Essex
CM16 6RA

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Gillan

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey extensions to side and rear, detached garage and
elevational changes. (Revised application)

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to commencement of the development. The assessment shall
demonstrate compliance with the principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems
(SuDS). The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the first occupation of
the building hereby approved and shall be adequately maintained.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

4 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match
those of the existing building.

5 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or
removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority. All tree works approved shall
be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work
(B.S.3998: 1989).

If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely
damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at
such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 35



If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to
any variation.

6 Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Description of Proposal:

Two storey extensions to side and rear, detached garage and elevational changes. (Revised
application)

Description of Site:

The site is located on the north-eastern end of Lynceley Grange, which is a cul de sac.

Lynceley Grange is an established residential area with mainly semi-detached dwelling and
detached dwellings.

Relevant History:

EPF/0342/06: Refused permission on 07/04/2006 for Two storey extensions to side and rear,
detached garage and elevational changes.

Policies Applied:

DBE9 – Affect on neighbouring occupiers
DBE10 – Appearance of proposal and street scene

Issues and Considerations:

The main considerations for this proposal are:

1) Scale, design and size of extension
2) Effect on neighbouring occupiers
3) Traffic and parking

1) Scale and size of extension

The extensions would project out to the side by a maximum of 4 metres towards no. 28 Lynceley
Grange and would further project out to the rear with a maximum depth of 11.1 metres. A ground
floor extension will project out to the rear to a maximum of 2.4 metres facing no. 15 Lynceley
Grange.

A new garage is proposed close to no. 28 Lynceley Grange with dimensions of 5.5 x 5.5 metres.
The garage will be accessed via the existing crossover from which a new driveway will be
proposed across the front of the property.

Page 36



The proposed new first floor will project out to the side and rear, similarly with the ground floor
extensions. The first floor will have two new dormer windows on the front elevation and the flank
wall towards the new garage will have a new dormer window, the proposed rear will have a new
dormer window and the elevation facing the rear garden will have a new dormer window. All the
proposed new dormer windows will match the existing dormer window on the rear & front
elevations as well as the surrounding dwellings.

The overall extensions would be considered acceptable in relation to the site area as the site has
substantial amount of land associated with the dwelling when looking at the overall context of the
surrounding area.

The previous application (ref: EPF/0342/06) was refused on scale and design, as it was not in
character with the surrounding area.

The provision of rooms in the sloping roof will have less impact on the character of the street
scene than the previously refused scheme.

The proposal has addressed the previous reason for refusal and pre-application discussions have
taken place, therefore the proposed scale of the two-storey rear and side extensions would be
considered acceptable and within the Council Guidelines.

2) Effect on neighbouring occupiers

It is not considered that the proposed development would have an adverse impact on the
neighbouring properties, particularly nos. 11 and 28 Lynceley Grange. Although new dormer
windows are being proposed the first floor bedroom dormer windows are positioned in such a way
that they would have minimum impact with the neighbouring occupiers.

One of the bedroom widows overlooks the front garden of no. 28, which is not deemed to be
private amenity space. Another bedroom window is facing no. 15 but this is set way by 9.3 metres
from the boundary wall, therefore the new dormer window would be considered acceptable. A
further bedroom, which is adjacent to the existing garage, would overlook the existing front
driveway of the site and the rear amenity space of the site.

The proposal is considered acceptable from a neighbouring amenity point of view and is an
improved scheme from the previous application.

3) Traffic and parking

The site is located at the end of a cul de sac in which parking problems due occur. However the
extension would not be the sole reason for parking problems and to compensate for the extra
bedrooms the proposal is providing a new driveway with a new garage, which is welcomed. It
would be unfair to suggest the extension will create excessive amounts of parking problems, which
are already occurring on the highway and would not be a reason for refusing this application.

Conclusion

The proposed two storey extensions to side and rear, detached garage and elevational changes
would not cause any detrimental harm to the amenities of neighbouring occupiers and would not
be out of character with the existing dwelling and the surrounding area and therefore is
recommended for approval.

Page 37



SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

TOWN COUNCIL - Committee object to this application and is concerned that although the
property stands on a very large plot, because of the location of the application and extensions on
the site, the application will be intrusive to neighbouring properties and will appear out of scale in
the street scene.

3 LYNCELEY GRANGE – Object as the application is little improvement of last application, spoil
the character of the area and estate and proposal is an over development of the area which would
ruin the character of the estate.

5 LYNCELEY GRANGE – Object to the proposal as the area is mainly occupied by retired people
in which the development will be out of character with the surrounding area and will ruin the small
area that people live in.

6 LYNCELEY GRANGE – Object as proposal not in keeping with other properties in the street,
would set a precedent as an overdevelopment building in an area designed mainly as a two
bedroom bungalow estate which are mainly elderly and retired people.

7 LYNCELEY GRANGE – Object to the proposal as the new development will intrude on the
character and intention of the small scale cul-de-sac of small dwellings, if granted the proposal
would set a precedent to turn existing properties into family homes, development will infringe on
the privacy of nos. 3, 5, 7, 9, 11 and overdevelopment of the site.

8 LYNCELEY GRANGE – Object to the proposal as overdevelopment of site of out of character
with the existing dwelling on the street and will set a precedent for future development in area.

11 LYNCELEY GRANGE – Oppose the revised application due to the loss of privacy as first floor
windows overlooking and to proposal too close to boundary line, proposal out of scale in relation to
the surrounding bungalows, development will cause pollution & noise and proposal will create
access and parking problems to emergency vehicles and neighbouring properties. Object to the
planning application as development will be out of scale with existing bungalows, very different to
previous developments in the area, cause detrimental impact to neighbouring properties, revised
proposal greater in size than previous proposal, revised proposal although the bedroom have
decreased the room sizes have increased and dormer windows will overlook and impact privacy
on neighbouring properties. Plans are misleading, concerns over parking and vehicle movement,
proposal is totally out of character and the development will lead to the demise of Lynceley
Grange.

13 LYNCELEY GRANGE – Object to the proposal as the proposed plans are unsatisfactory,
building will be out of scale and overbearing to neighbouring properties, loss of privacy in garden,
development will cause noise and traffic problems and development will not be keeping with
properties in the street.

20 LYNCELEY GRANGE – Object to the proposal as parking problems on the highway as it is,
house will be occupied by people with one than 1 car and new development out of character with
area.

26 LYNCELEY GRANGE – Object to proposal as cause problems to vehicle movements, vehicle
parking, restrictive access to turning area, latest proposal larger than previous scheme, study
could be still used as a bedroom and development will set a precedent for future schemes which
would lead to the loss of character to the street and area.

28 LYNCELEY GRANGE – Object to the proposal as Inappropriate to the area, will set a
precedent for future development in the street, will overlook bathroom and bedroom windows, the

Page 38



new access drive would be to narrow and cause further problems with parking and the size of new
building will be out of character.

18 BEULAH ROAD - Object to the proposal as the revised application continues to envisage an
extremely large expansion of the existing property, total floor area appears to be larger than the
previous application, although bedroom have decreased from 4 to 3 the sizes of the bedrooms are
larger, misleading of plans as inaccurate, not addressed the scale of the previous refusal, proposal
would result in overdevelopment of site which would be out of proportion with the street.

Page 39



105.8m

*

*

*

*

*

*

*
*

*

**

19

12

9

1
0

1
a

1
b

1

6

1
8a11

18

1
8
b

28

17

20

1

6

1

2

1

3

1
0

2

9

12

23

Pond

EGG
HALL

R
E
E
T

LYNCELEY

B
E

U
L

A
H

R
O

A
D

G
R

A
N

G
E

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map

with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

Copyright and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Item
Number:

5

Application Number: EPF/1467/06

Site Name: 17 Lynceley Grange, Epping

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 40



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/1430/06

SITE ADDRESS: North Weald Airfield
Merlin Way
North Weald
Epping
Essex

PARISH: North Weald

APPLICANT: EFDC

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retention of two 150mm x 7m tubular steel CCTV masts one
at main gate and one to west of Jet centre.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT

CONDITION:

1 The CCTV masts hereby approved shall be removed if no longer required.

Description of Proposal:

The District Council application seeks for the retention of 2 CCTV masts (150mm x 7m) at North
Weald Airfield.

Mast A is situated at the main gate to the east of the airfield and is required for the recording of
vehicles entering the airfield between 19:00 and 09:00, when staff are not on duty.

The other mast (B) is positioned to the west, close to the Jet Centre. The justification for its
installation is to give night and day recordable pictures of the western side of the airfield.

Description of Site:

This development is contained entirely within North Weald airfield, which is included in the
Metropolitan Green Belt.

The M25 runs to the east of the airfield, although only mast A is visible from a public highway,
(Merlin Way via the main airfield entrance).

Relevant History:

None relevant

Page 41



Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

GB2A- Development within the Green Belt.
RST27- North Weald Airfield use and development
DBE9- Amenity

Issues and Considerations:

The key issues relevant to this application, are the appropriateness of the masts in light of Green
Belt and tourism, sport and recreation policy and any impact upon amenity in the locality.

Green Belt policy allows for small scale development associated with outdoor participatory sport
and recreation. The areas of the airfield in which the CCTV masts are accommodated, are
earmarked as such within the Adopted Local Plan. While the masts are not ‘buildings’ directly
relating to the airfield, they are clearly a reasonable addition for the safety and security of airfield
users. The masts themselves are not of out of character with other paraphernalia associated with
the airfield and as such have minimal impact of the open character of the Green Belt.

The masts are required on site to give the best possible coverage to weak areas of the airfield and
to monitor vehicles entering the site when no staff are on duty.  On this basis the development is in
accordance with Local Plan Policy RST27, which seeks to promote and enable the use and
development of the airfield as a ‘multi-functional recreation and leisure centre and showground’.
The promotion and enhancement of such uses are aided through improved management and
security of the site, which is enhanced through the CCTV surveillance.

In terms of amenity, the intrinsic character and historic interest of this former RAF airfield is not
degraded, (as a result of the masts) and the overall visual impact is minimal.

Conclusion:

The CCTV masts are a reasonable additional to the functioning and security of North Weald
Airfield and present minimal visual impact. As such approval is recommended.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

PARISH COUNCIL - No comments received

Page 42



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/1367/06

SITE ADDRESS: 7 Forest Drive
Theydon Bois
Epping
Essex
CM16 7EX

PARISH: Theydon Bois

APPLICANT: Mr J Phillips

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Loft conversion with front and rear dormer windows.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans
received on 25 July 2006 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match
those of the existing building.

Description of Proposal:

Consent is being sought for a loft conversion with front and rear dormers. The dormer in the front
roofslope will be 1.4m wide and that in the rear 2 metres wide. They are located in the centre of
each roofslope.

Description of Site:

A two storey, 2 bedroom-terraced house built in 1999/2000 and lies to the western side of Forest
Drive. It is adjacent to a recently built two/three storey flats complex, known as The Heights. The
roofline in relation to this development is subordinate. The local shops across the road and its
side return have similar flat roofed dormers. The parade of shops to its north, have 2 similar flat
roofed dormers.

Relevant History:

Former disused shop, which was given change of use permission under application number
EPF/1640/98 for residential development on 26 May 1999. The proposal was implemented in
1999/2000.

Page 43



Policies Applied:

DBE 9 and DBE 10: Residential Design Development Policies of the
Approved Local Plan Alterations 2006.

Issues and Considerations:

The key issue relating to this application is the design of the dormers and subsequent impact on
the visual amenities of the surrounding area.

Design:

The sizes of the dormers have been reduced. The amended drawing shows a reduction of 1
metre in the width of the front and 500mm in the rear. This is a substantial improvement over the
original proposal.

The dormers are set well within the roof slopes and their sizes are moderate. The dormers will not
dominate the roof slopes and will not form an intrusive feature in the street scene. It is, therefore,
considered that the roof alteration will not adversely affect the appearance of the building to the
detriment of the surrounding area. It is considered that the proposal will conform to the objectives
of Policy DBE9 and DBE10 of the Adopted Local Plan. The scheme is in keeping with the
surrounding dormers above shops.

Amenity:

The proposed dormer windows will serve a new bedroom being created in the loft area of this
house. The nearest flats to the rear lie at approximately 30 metres from the rear dormer. This
distance is sufficient to avoid any loss of light, over-shadowing and overlooking on the surrounding
properties. It is therefore considered that the proposed development will not cause any
detrimental impact on the living amenities of the surrounding properties.

Conclusion:

Overall it is considered that the proposed dormers are consistent with policies DBE9 and DBE10
of the Adopted Local Plan. In reaching the recommendation to grant permission, specific
consideration was given to the nearby similar front dormers and their impact on the surrounding
properties and the character of the area as a whole.

The proposal, on its planning merit, is recommended for approval.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL - Objects to the front dormer. The Council feels that its
installation will result in detrimental terms to the street-scene.

THE DIRECTORS OF THE HEIGHTS RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION - has objected to this proposal
they feel that the proposal will be bulky, out of scale and lead to loss of privacy for its neighbours.

Page 44



THEYDON BREST DISTRICT

BUXTON
ROAD

ROAD

P
O

P
L
A

R
R

O
A

D

ABRIDGE

B
172

LB

52.1m

TCB

52.7m

53.9m

B
M

5
3
.9

7
m

53.3m

5

11

1

Octave

House

1
to

8

The

1925

PH

Shelter

Bull

(PH)

2
8

1
8

2
2

21

3
1

3
2

a

7

2

1
1

1

1
0

3

1
to

14

3BuxtonCourt

4

5
2

2
0
a

1
9

PO

Surgery

31

40

1

5

41

(PH)

B
k

Shelter

PO

1
5

to
1
8

The Heights

Swift House

Queen

Victoria

5

11

Three

Elms

3

2

*

*

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map

with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

Copyright and may lead to prosecution or
civil proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Item
Number:

7

Application Number: EPF/1367/06

Site Name: 7 Forest Drive, Theydon Bois

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Webcasting
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	3 Minutes
	7 Development Control
	Application Schedule V


